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ona of northwest Arkansas' most soundly constructed houses in located at
Johnson. Resting on. a four-foot-thick foundatrion of native stone,

the Johnson House is of solid brick constzucfion with 1B8-inch-thick
exterior walls. The interior was ecually well constructed and shows
little, if any, deterioration after almost a century of use.

Construction of the house bsgan  about 1880 and was complated in
1882. Bricks were made and kiln fired in a field south of the house.
Stonemason M. C. Todd, whoss name is carved on the northwest corner of
the porch, cut the sandstone used for the entry steps, porch, water
table and window sills. The carpenter’'s name was originally carved

on a porch bracket, but was lost when the porch was remodeled in the
1920's.

The Johnson House is an ell-shape structure with a one-story wing
projecting from the rear of the two-story house. The one-story ell-
shape porch, running along the inside of the ell, was enclosed in 1962.
A two-story porch covers the center bays of the five-bay-wide west
facade.

Separating the brick walls and stone foundation is a water table of

cut sandstone. The solid brick walls are set in an unusuwal pattern
with every ninth row of bricks set lengthwise. Resting on the sandstone
porch are four carved limestone blocks which support the wooden porch
posts. Each of the nine~foot-tall windows has a sandstone. lugsill and
segmental arch.

Both sections of the Johnson House have been re-~roofed and are now
covered with hip roofs with exposed rafters. Brick chimneys extend
above the second-story roof on both the north and south elevations.
Though the paired brackets have bean removed the paneled frieze -on the
two-story section remains intact,

On the west facade, the original one-story wocden porch with deck is
still in place, but in the 1920's a roof was added over the second story.
The expertly carved woodwork of the porch gives a light, decorative
touch to the solid brick house.

The main entry is located on the center bay of the west facade. Set in
a segmental arch like the windows, the main entry has oval sidelights
over half panels. The transom has & wide oval light, set horizontally,
flanked by two smaller oval lights, set vertically. A similar entry
opens onto the upper porch.

On the interior, the Johnscon House has a central hall flanked by a single
room on each fleoor. Extending from the northwest is the ell wing which
contains the original dining room and kitchen. Except for the enclosed
porch, all rooms have 12 foot ceilings. The kitchen, which measures

16 by 1B feet, ig glightly larger than the other rooms, which measure

16 by 16 feet.
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Dominating the central hallway is an oval stairway which rises two-ané-
one-half stories. Other features of note are the molded trim around
doors and windows, paneled arches between rooms and hand-carved mantle-
pleces. The most beautiful feature of the house is the ceiling in the
north parlor. Made of inlaid wood, this ceiling was hand stenciled.
Under two coats of clear varnish, applied in 1924 and 1947, this magni-
ficent ceiling retains its original colors of red, black, green and gold.

Just northeast of the Johnson House is the smokehouse, constructed

about 1880 of second guality bricks not suitable for use in the house.
Resting on a stone foundation with a rock floor, the brick walls of

the smokehouse are set in the same pattern as the house. About four

feet zbove ground a series of vertical slits were left open for
ventilation. A modern garage abuts the northeast corner of the smokehouse,

Behind the Johnson House lies & small stone ' wellhouse constructed in
1210, This small structure is made of cut stone like that used in the
foundations of the house and smokehouse. The gable roof of the well-
house extends to cover a small porch.

North of the Johnson House is the mill pond, fed by a natural spring.
The mill race, probably built in the early 19th century, runs south
from the pond, then west to a point north of the mill, then turns socuth
to guide the spring water to the mill, lozated southwest of the house.

The Johnson Mill was constructed lE865-67 to replace an earlier mill
burned during the Civil War. The site has been continuously occupied
by a mill since the 1830's, and possibly as early as 1805. The mill
ig still in commercial operatiorn.

Johnspon Mill is a two-and-one-~half story frame stxucture with a gable
roof. The buildings rests on a stone foundation like that of the
Johnson House. Though several entries are located around the building,
only the lower east entry is still in use, Fenestration is very plain
and spaced irregularly around the building. On the west elevation,
over the terminus of the mill race, a small shed roof was added about
1210.

On the west elevation the 38-foot overshot mill wheel was originally
located. In 1898 this wheel was removed and the new power source vas
a fifteen-and-one-half inch James Leffel Turbine. This gave way to a
ten—-inch Little Giant Turbine in the 1%20's., The present power source,
a2 natyral gas engine, was installed about 1324C. The upper two floors
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of the mill house have alwavs been used for grain storage, while ths

main floor contains the mill machinery.

Lying just to the northeast of the mill is a one story warehouse built
in 193%. Like the modern garags north of the Johnson House, this
intrusion does not significantly detract from the setting.

The Johnson House, Mill and outbuildings are located on a rural road

just west of the Johnson community. The pastoral setting has not

been greatly altered since the first mill occupied the site in the

early 19th century.
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The Johnson House and Mill are two significant structures important for
both .their architecture and theix history. Located in close proximity

on a three-acre xural site, the house and mill illustrate a prosperous

rural lifestyle found in northwest Arkansas in the late 19th century.

Construction of the Johnson House, originally owned by Jacob Q. Johnson,
vas completed in 1882, (Both Johnson's initials and the date are carved
in stone on the front porch.} The house is built of bricks made and kiln
fired in a field south of the house. The two-story house is ell-shape
with a one-story wing projecting at the rear. BAcross the west facade a
two-story wooden porch features paneled columns, arcade-like balusters
and jigsaw trim. This decorative porch, segmental-arched fenestration,
and paneled frieze add interest +o the solidly constructed brick house.
The interior retains its original spiral staircase, paneled archways and
mantelpleces- however, the most 1mpre551ve feature is the inlaid sten01led
ceiling int thé north parlor. -

Two small outbuildings of early construction emphasize the rural atsosphere
of the Jchnson farm. Behind the house is a small wellhouse built in 1910,
Tt is of the-same type of native stone found in the foundation ©f tle house.
Just north of the houss ig a brick smokehousze constructed about 1880. an
important part of farm life, the smokehouse was used to cure and store .
meats for family consumption. Most country smokehouses were guickly
constructed and thus easily destroyed, but great care was taken in building
the Johnson smokehouse. Though "second" guality bricks were used, they
were sebt carefully over the stone floocr. Ventilation slits encircle

the building about four feet above the ground. This well-preserved smoke-
house is a very important example of Arkansas farm life in the late 1%th
century.

Since its original construction the Johnson House has remained in the

Johnson family. Jaceb Q. Johnson, who ‘had I3 children, sold the house

to hig brother, Benjamin F. Johnson. Later the house belong to Benjamin's
son, Burtos Benjamin Johnson; it is now owned and occupied by Marion Frank
Johnson, son of B. B. Johnson. Kaving been passed down through the family,
the Johnson House has remained in excellent conditien.

Of even greater historic significance than the Johnson House is the Johnson
Mill, located about a guarter mile southwest of the house. This two-and-
one-half story frame building has housed a continuously operating grist mill
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since itg construction in the 1860's. Food production, now a very important
industry in Washington County, began early in this area with mills such
as the Johson's.

The Johnson Mill occupies a site long associated with mills. During the original
land survey in 1834, the site was occupieé by the Truesdale Mill and another mill.
The survey notes describe "Truesdale Mill abeout three chains to the left - old
mill to the right about 200 links,..."* 3If land surveyors in 1834 referred to
the mill as "old," then it is probable that it was built much earlier in the
century. At any rate, since 1834, and possibly long before, the site has

been associated with a milil.

The first claim on the property was filed in 1838 by Mr. John Pyeatte Moore.
After his death in 1850 the property passed through a number of hands. The
arkansas Products of Industry Census of 1860 list it as “"Sutton's Mill,”

and deed records indicate that it was then owned by Isabella Sutton, widow

of Senaca Sutton, who was appointed but died in 1858 before he could serve

as first postmaster of the newly created Spring Mill Post 0ffice. In 1360
Sutton's Mill was valued at $10,000 and processed over $40,000 worth of grain
Per year.

During the Civil War northwest Arkansas was the scene of a gyreat deal of
fighting. Following the Battle of Pea Ridge in 1862, retreating Confederate
soldiérs burned the Truesdale-Sutton Mill, thus preventing the Union troops
from capturing and using the mill. The site lay empty until after the war
when the present mill was built.

In November, 1865, the deed was filed transferring the mill property, with
improvements and apurtenances, to William, Samuel and Yacinda Mayes, and

Jacob Q. and Rhetta J. Johnson. Almost two yvears later J. Q. Johnson registered
as the miller of "Spring Mill:;" thus, construction of the present mill prokably
took about two vears, being completed in 1857. Since that time the mill has
remained in contimuous operation. In 1880 the Mayes' sold their porticn of

the property to the Johnson's, and the ownership of the mill has since then
coincided with that of the house.

Originally the mill had a 38-foot overshot water wheel attached at the west
elevation. The wheel was powered by spring water channeled through a mill

race. In 1898 a turbine replaced the overshot whesl, and the big wheel was
renpoved. BAbout 1240 the present ownéer began using a natural gas-powared
engine to operate the mill machinery,

e Johnson House and Mill are an important part of northwest Arkansas' history.
Exemplifying 19th century architectural styles, farm life and rural commerce,
the Johnson farm is a most significant historic site,
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*Bobbi Lynch, "Early Mills of Washington County," Flashback (February, 1976}, p.2.
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property placed on the Hational Register of Historic
Places.
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proparty on the National Register of Historic Places.
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